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‘ POINTS TO REMEMBER

Grand Juries, Scheduling

RN

It appears,on the basis of a survey conducted for a subcommittee of the
' Judicial Conference's Committee on the Operation of the Jury System, that a
substantial number of grand jurors have been upset because sessions are not
scheduled for days certain and too frequently last only part of the day. The
cost of grand and petit juries has climbed sharply over the past decade, with
i the cost of grand juries rising the more rapidly. It is recognized that the

5 close scheduling of grand jury sessions is not always feasible. Still, the
Criminal Division requests that the United States Attorneys review their
grand jury practices to see whether, with tighter scheduling, the time of the
grand jurors can be utilized more efficiently and possibly some days of
cervice avoided.
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Obscenity

The National Legal Data Center on the Law of Obscenity will be

g contacting United States Attorneys throughout the country, requesting copies

X of briefs and memoranda filed in obscenity cas?s. The organization is headed
i by Homer Ycoung, former Special Agent of the FBI, funded by an LEAA grant
‘ { of $250,000, and began operations in August of 1972. It is anticipated that
the Center will function as a clearing house on the law of obscenity, providing
information and assistance to both state and Federal prosecutors confronted
with complex challenges from the relatively few firms that specialize in
obscanity law. The Department encourages your cooperation with this

Center and has no objecticn to direct communication.

S

Analysis of Public Law 92-539, Act for the Protection
of Foreign Officials and Official Guests of the
United States

Addead at the end of this issue of the Bulletin is an analysis of the
Act for the Protection of Foreign Officials and Official Guests of the
United States. The Act, which was approved October 24, 1972, created a
new seriegs of Federal offenses in cases of attacks on the person or property
cf foreign officials or official guests in the United States. The new juris-
diction is concurrent with existing State law and is not meant to supplant it.
The offenses covered are murder, kidnapping, assault, harassment, threat
and property damage. The Act added to orrevised Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 112, 270, 1116, 1117 and 1201. Considering the possible
impact upon our foreign relations of an attack upon a foreign official in this
country, it would be advisable for each United States Attorney's Office to

i be aware of this statute. This material was placed at the end of the Bulletin
to facilitate easy removal and storage elsewhere for ready access, if desired.

(Criminal Division)

»
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Bulletin Correction ‘

A nortion of the Tax Division article on page 169 of United
States Attorneys Bulletin, Volume 21, No. 5, dated March 2, 1973 was
omitted. The article should appear as:

COURTS OF APPEAL

Failure to File
Fiduciary Income Tax Returns

United States v. Jenning (C.A. 9, No. 72-2809; decided January 10,
1973)

Executors, corporation presidents, and other representative parties
sometimes contend that, because they are not specifically listed in the
applicable statutes, they are not "persons" within the meaning of 26 U.S.C.
7203, which makes it a misdemeanor for any "person " to fail to file a
required tax return. - The Ninth Circuit recently held that an executor can
be prosecuted as a "person" within the meaning of Section 7203.

Staff: United States Attorney Sidney I. Lezak ’
Assistant U, S. Attorney Jack C. Wong .
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_ EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR U.S. ATTORNEYS
. Philip H. Modlin, Director

By teletype dated March 14, 1973, all United States Attor-
neys were advised that the President had approved an amendment
to the Regulations (26 CFR 301.6103(a)-1(g) and (h)) governing
the inspection of returns by United States Attorneys and Attor-
neys of the Department of Justice. ' '

i
2
R

Pursuant to the above Order, Treasury Decision 7266 was
issued on March 13, 1973 amending Section 301.6103(a)-1 relating
to the inspection of returns. The amendments provide as fol-
lows:

Section 301.6103(a)-1 Inspection of returns by certain
classes of persons and State and Federal
Government establishments pursuant to Executive
order.

3 * * * * *

& (g) Inspection of returns by U.S. attorneys and
; attorneys of Department of Justice. A return 1in
‘ respect of any tax described in paragraph (a)(2) of

this section shall be open to inspection by a U.S.

attorney or by an attorney of the Department of
C Justice where necessary in the performance of his
A official duties. The application for inspection
: shall be in writing and shall show (1) the name and
address of the person for whom the return was made,
(2) the kind of tax reported on the return, (3) the
taxable period covered by the return, and (4) the
reason why inspection is desired. The application
shall, where the inspection is to be made by a U.S.
attorney, be signed by such attorney, and, where the
inspection is to be made by an attorney of the Depart-
ment of Justice, be signed by the Attorney General,
Deputy Attorney General, or an Assistant Attorney
General. The application shall be addressed to the
Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Washington, D.C.
20224, with a copy addressed to the internal revenue
officer (the district director or the director of the
service center) with whom the return was filed.

(h) Use of returns in grand jury proceedings and
in litigation. Returns made in respect of any tax
described in paragraph (a)(2) of this section, or
copies thereof, may be furnished by the Secretary or

. the Commissioner or the delegate of either to a U.S.
‘ ,. attorney or an attorney of the Department of Justice
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for official use in proceedings before a U. S. grand jury, or

in litigation in any court, if the United States is interested in
the result, or for use in preparation for such proceedings or
litigation. The original return will be furnished only in
exceptional cases, and then only if it is made to appear that the
ends of justice may otherwise be defeated. Returns or copies
thereof will be furnished without written application therefor

to U. S. Attorneys and attorneys of the Department of Justice
for official use in the prosecution of claims and demands by,
and offenses against, the United States, or the defense of
claims and demands against the United States or officers or
employees thereof, in cases arising under the internal revenue
laws or related statutes which were referred by the Department
of the Treasury to the Department of Justice for such prosecution
or defense. In all other cases, written application for a return
or copies thereof shall be made to the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue [in the manner set forth in paragraph (g)]. * * * If a

return, or copy thereof, is furnished pursuant to this paragraph,
it shall be limited in use to the purpose for which it is furnished
and is under no condition to be made public except to the extent
that publicity necessarily results from such use. Neither the
original nor a copy of a return desired for use in litigation in
court will be furnished if the United States is not interested in
the results, but this provision is not a limitation on the use of

. copies of returns by the persons entitled thereto. See paragraph

(e) and (f) of this section for use, in proceedings to which the
United States is a party, of information obtained by executive
departments and other Federal Government establishments from
inspection of returns. If a U. S. attorney or an attorney of the
Department of Justice has obtained a copy of a return under
paragraph (g) of this section, an application for the use of such
return in a situation specified in this paragraph shall not be
necessary. Returns shall not be made available to the Department

of Justice for purposes of examining prospective jurors except

that this shall not prohibit the answering of an inquiry, from

the Department of Justice, as to:whether a prospective juror
has, or has not, been investigated by the Internal Revenue

Service.
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ANTITRUST DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

DISTRICT COURT
‘ SHERMAN ACT

MUTUAL FUNDS CHARGED WITH VIOLATION OF SECTION 1 OF SHERMAN
ACT.

United States v. National Association of Securities Dealers,
Inc., et al. (Civ. 338-73; February 21, 1873; DJ 00-268—13)

On February 21, 1973 a complaint was filed against the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (NASD), three
mutual funds and their principal underwriters, and nine broker/
dealers. The complaint charges a continuing understanding and
concert of action among the defendants to prevent the growth of
inter-dealer and brokerage markets in the purchase and sale
of mutual fund shares in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman
Act.

Mutual fund shares are continuously distributed through a
principal underwriter who purchases shares from the fund under a
distribution contract. The underwriter in turn enters into sales
agreements with broker/dealers which purchase the shares from the
underwriter and resell them to the public. The Investment Com-
pany Act of 1940 (Section 22d) requires that the mutual fund share
price (net asset value plus commission) established in the fund
prospectus be maintained on all sales of fund shares to the
public. The Act does not prohibit commission price competition
when shares are sold between dealers or when broker/dealers act
as brokers (agents) for the sale of fund shares. The complaint
charges the defendants with concerted action designed to prevent
the growth of these inter-dealer and brokerage markets.

The NASD is a trade association organized and registered
with the SEC pursuant to the Maloney Act (1938 amendments to the
1934 Securitics Exchange Act). The NASD is composed of virtually
all broker/dealers and mutual fund underwriters, including all
the defendants, and has self-regulatory authority subject to
oversight by the Securities Exchange Commission, over the over-
the-counter securities market and over the mutual fund industry.
The complaint charges the NASD with establishing and maintaining
rules which induce broker/dealers and principal underwriters to
enter 1nto sales agreements with knowledge that the sales agree-
ments contain restrictive provisions designed to inhibit the
growth of an inter-dealer and brokerage market in mutual fund
shares. In addition, the complaint charges the NASD with dis-
couraging persons who made inquiry about the legality of a broker-
age market; distributing misleading information to its members
concerning the legality of a brokerage market; and suppressing
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market quotations for the inter-dealer market.

The mutual funds complexes named as defendants are Fidelity
Fund, Inc. and the Crosby Corporation, its affiliated principal
underwriter; Wellington Fund, Inc., and the Wellington Management
Company, its affiliated principal underwriter; and Massachusetts
Investors Growth Stock Fund and Vance, Sanders & Company, its
principal underwriter. Also named as defendants are nine of the
country's largest broker dealers: Merrill Lynch, Pierce,

Fenner § Smith, Inc.; Bache § Company, Inc.; Reynolds Securities
Corporation; duPont, Glore Forgan, Inc.; E.F. Hutton, Inc.;
Walston § Company, Inc.; Dean Witter & Company, Inc.; Paine,
Webber, Jackson § Curtis, Inc.; and Hornblower § Weeks-Hemphill,
Noyes, Inc.

The complaint charges contracts and combinations between
the funds and their principal underwriters and between the broker/
dealers and the principal underwriters, the substantial terms of
which are that:

(1) a) a broker/dealer would act as a dealer only
in the sale of fund shares; or

b) that if it acted as broker it would maintain ‘1
the resale price; . ;

(2) that the broker/dealers would purchase shafes
S only from the Fund or its customers (excluding
other broker/dealers);

(3) that the broker/dealer would sell shares only to
its customers or the Fund (excluding other broker/
dealers).

As a result of these contracts and combinations, the com-
plaint charges, sales of mutual fund shares have been confined
to primary distribution channels and the public has been deprived
of the benefits of free and open competition in secondary markets.
In addition, broker/dealers outside a fund's primary distribution
system has been deprived of an opportunity to trade in fund's
shares.

The suit seeks to enjoin the NASD from formally or informally
impeding the development of secondary markets in mutual fund
shares. It also seeks to abrogate the restrictive provisions in
existing distribution contracts and to prohibit similar provisions
in future contracts. Under the requested relief, the defendants
would be obligated to inform prospective investors of the possi-
bility of effecting fund transaction in a secondary market. ’

The suit has been assighed to Judge Howard Corcoran pursuant
to a local rule regarding related cases. A related private



 antitrust treble damage case, Maddad, et al. v. The Crosby
Corporation, et al., was filed approximately six weeks prior tc
the Government's case.

i , Staff: D.R. Hunder, P.L. Verveer and R.J. Silverman
L (Antitrust Division)

2




_ CIVIL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Harlington Wood, Jr.
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COMMODITY CREDIT CORPORATION ’ ‘

FIFTH CIRCUIT HOLDS SURETIES LIABLE ON BONDS ISSUED TO
SECURE PRICE SUPPORT LOANS UNDER AGRICULTURE ACT.

St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance Corporation v. Commodity Credit
Corporation (C. A. 5, No. 72-2237, February 15, 1973; D.]J. 120-73-350)

Under the price support programs established under the
Agricultural Act of 1949, 7 U.S.C. 1421, et seq., farmers or
marketing cooperatives may tender produce for non-recourse
government loans. The produce is stored in commercial warehouses
and warehouse receipts evidencing each bale are then issued.
Loans are then made against the produce stored. The 1963 loan
agreements contained a clause stating that "CCC may, if it deems
it desirable, release warehouse receipts to the Association
against trust receipts acceptable to CCC." In the instant case,
the debtor cooperative had used the trust receipt procedure, but
had failed to redeem the receipts when due.

Suit was instituted by the surety companies seeking a
declaration of no liability on $265,000 worth of bonds issued to ¥
secure the marketing cooperative's obligations under the Loan ’
Agreement. The Government's counterclaim sought recovery of the
full amount of the bonds. The district court held that the
companies were not liable on the grounds that the obligations
breached were not part of the Loan Agreement, but rather obliga-
tions set forth in the later-issued trust receipts. The court
further held that these bonds were not incorporated by reference
into the Loan Agreement. Having ruled on these grounds, the
district court did not consider the affirmative defenses raised
by the sureties. '

On appeal, the Fifth Circuit reversed, holding that the
sureties had bonded obligations arising under the Loan Agreement.
The Court rejected the sureties' contention that the Government
had waived its rights by failing to notify the sureties when it
first became apparent that the cooperative could not meet all
its obligations. Apparently the Court accepted the Government's
contention that there can be no absolution of surety liability
in such cases if the ultimate default is not traced to the earlier
defalcations. The Court remanded the case for consideration of
the affirmative defenses raised by the sureties, and suggested
that on remafid ‘the district court reconsider its holding that the
trust receipts had not been incorporated by reference into the
Loan Agreement.

Staff: Judith S. Feigin (Civil Division) ’
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‘ LABOR-MANAGEMENT REPORTING DISCLOSURE ACT

SIXTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT A CANDIDATE FOR UNION OFFICE CANNQOT
BE DEPRIVED OF POWER TO MAKE TIMELY FILING OF NOMINATING CERTIFI-
CATE, AND THAT MEMBER'S COMPLAINT TO UNION, EVEN IF AMBIGUOUS,
SATISFIED THE ACT'S EXHAUSTION REQUIREMENT.

; James D. Hodgson, Secretary of Labor v. District 6, United
3 _ Mine Workers of America, et al. (C.A. 6, No. 72-1198, decided
February 28, 1973; DJ 145-48-126)

This appeal was taken by the Secretarv of Labor from an
order of the district court dismissing his complaint that the
district's procedure for nominating candidates for union office
violated the Labor-Management Reporting Disclosure Act. The
Court of Appeals reversed, holding that the challenged procedure
-- which gave a union official, rather than the candidate for
LN office, the sole authority to timely file the candidate's nomina-
ting certificate with the union's headquarters -- was an unrea-
5. sonable qualification on a member's right to be nominated for
% office. The court held that the circumstances here, which placed
"the transmission of nominations out of the control of local
union members and of the candidate himself", were wholly incon-
sistent with the Act's policy requiring fair and democratic

' union elections.

- The Court of Appeals also rejected the district court's al-
ternative holding that the union member did not exhaust his union
remedies because the member's letter of protest failed to apprise
the union of the nature of his complaint. In holding that the
exhaustion requirement had been satisfied, the court stressed the
principle that "any ambiguities must be resolved in favor of

the complaining union member * * * In other words, the exhaustion
requirement is to be both liberally construed in favor of the
complaining union member and objectively determined." Under this
standard, the court held that the complainant's letter adequately
stated his protest, and accordingly, that the failure of union
officials -- even in good faith -- to properly construe the nature
of the complaint could not bar intervention by the Secretary.

finally, the Court of Appeals approved the view of the Third
Circuit in Schultz v. Local 1291, I.L.A., 429 F.2d 592 (C.A. 3,
1970}, that a letter of protest sent to an official of the union
is equivalent to an appeal to the union itself, thereby satisfy-
ing the union's constitutional requirement that appeals must be
directed to the union.

Stzff: Robert S. Greenspan (Civil Division)

I GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS

D.C. CIRCUIT HOLDS MINORITY HIRING AGREEMENT ESSENTIAL TO
PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS.
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Nbrtheast Construction Co. v. Romney, No. 71-1650, decided
March 6, 1973; DJ 145-17-146

The "Washington Plan” for minority hiring requires bidders
on public construction contracts to furnish specific minority
manpower utilization goals by completing a Department of Labor
form known as "Appendix A." 41 C.F.R. 60-5.30. The low bidder on
a $§1 million housing and urban vevelopment rehabilitation pro-
ject in Southeast Washington, D.C. signed '"Appendix A" in blank
but failed to complete the form so as to indicate the number of
minority workers it would hire if awarded the contract, and HUD's
procurement officer rejected the bid as non-responsive. The
Comptroller General upheld HUD's decision against a challenge by
the low bidder that the failure to furnish the information in
question was a '"minor informality or irregularity'" subject to
correction after bid opening. 41 C.F.R. 1-2.405. The dis-
appointed bidder then brought suit in the district court to en-
join HUD's award of the contract to the second low bidder, and
the district court granted injunctive relief reasoning that the
omission was in fact a minor irregularity since it did not re-
late to "price, quantity, quality or delivery" or otherwise
materially affect contract performance.

The Court of Appeals reversed, 2-1. The majority of the
court, noting that Congress and the President have increasingly
had recourse to the procurement power for nonprocurement objec-
tives in order to promote national social or economic goals
that have no immediate relevance to supplying the particular
procurement need, held that agency procurement officials have
no latitude to waive such mandatory provisions. The dissenting
judge agreed that the execution of Appendix A is material, but
reasoned that the bidder had made a good faith effort to comply
and should have been permitted to supply the missing figures
after bid opening.

Staff: Eloise E. Davies (Civil Division)

B
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CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General J. Stanley Pottinger

SUPREME COURT

PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS

COMMUNITY RECREATION ASSOCIATION, OPEN TO THE PUBLIC WITHIN
A SPECIFIC RESIDENTIAL AREA, IS NOT A '"PRIVATE CLUB'" AND MAY NOT
EXCLUDE MINORITY RESIDENTS OF THAT AREA FROM MEMBERSHIP.

Tillman, et al. v. Wheaton-Haven Recreation Association, Inc.,

(S.Ct. 71-1136; Feb. 27, 1973; D.J. 167-35-129)

This suit was brought by white and black plaintiffs against.
a suburban Washington, D.C., community recreation association for
alleged violation of Title II (Public Accommodations) of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 42 U.S.C. 1981 and 1982 (Statutes
providing that "all citizens' have the same rights as '"white
citizens'" to contract, to hold and inherit real property, etc.).

Wheaton-Haven, Inc. operates a swimming pool in Silver
Spring, Maryland, and has followed a policy of excluding blacks
from membership on the ground that the association is a '"'private
club'" exempt from coverage under the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
The Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit ruled in favor of
the defendant, holding that this exemption did indeed apply to the
assoclation.

In reversing the Court of Appeals, the Supreme Court relied
on Sullivan v. Little Hunting Park, 396 U.S. 229, and held that
Wheaton-Haven's racially discriminatory policy violates 42 U.S.C.
1982 because preference of membership to persons within a three-
quarter mile radius of the recreation association gave valuable
property rights to white residents which were not available to
black residents in the same area. The Supreme Court also held
that the association is not a '"private club" since membership
is open to every white person within a defined residential area,
and there is no selective element other than race in gaining
membership.

The Department of Justice filed an amicus curiae brief in
the Supreme Court urging reversal of the Court of Appeals
decision.

Staff: Gerald W. Jones (Chief, Voting and Public
- Accommodations Section, Civil Rights Division);
John C. Hoyle (Civil Rights Division)
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COURTS OF APPEAL

FAIR HOUSING

FIFTH CIRCUIT AFFIRMS RELIEF ORDERED IN ATLANTA BLOCKBUSTING
CASE.

United States v. Bob Lawrence Realty, Inc., et al. (C.A. 5;
No. 72-1655; decided February 13, 1I973; DJ 175-19-7)

This case was brought by the Department of Justice in Feb-
ruary 1970 against five real estate companies operating in
Atlanta, Georgia. The complaint alleged that the defendants had
engaged individually in conduct which violated the blockbusting
provision (Section 804 (e)) of the Fair Housing Act of 1968, and
further that the unlawful activities of the several companies
in the same area at the same time constituted a group '"pattern
or practice'" of resistance to the Act.

Two of the five defendants subsequently entered into consent
decrees with the Department, a third closed its business, and
the fourth went to trial with Bob Lawrence, Inc. The district
court entered a combined opinion and order in this case and a
separate suit, United States v. Ray Mitchell Realty Company,
(another Atlanta real estate firm), which involved similar legal
issues. Bob Lawrence, Inc. was the only defendant who appealed
the district court order.

‘Highlights of the Court of Appeals opinion, affirming the
relief prescribed by the lower court, are set forth below.

(1) The blockbusting statute (42 U.S.C. 3604(e)) is con-
stitutional in the face of a challenge that it violates the First
Amendment. The statute regulates commercial activity, not speech,
and "is aimed at the commercial activities of those who would
profiteer off the ills of society...."

(2) The Attorney General has standing to sue when either
an individual or a group pattern or practice of discrim-
ination is at issue. It does not matter whether or not defendants
in the group engaged in an individual pattern or practice of
discrimination.

(3) It is not necessary for the Attorney General to prove
that groups or persons charged with a pattern or practice of
discrimination engaged in a conspiracy or concerted action.
"Blockbusting by its very nature does not require concerted
action or a conspiracy to wreak its pernicious damage."

(4) The Attorney General has standing to sue when he alleges
that a group of persons has been denied rights under the Act and
the case raises an issue of general public importance. "It is
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not for the District Court to determine when an issue of public
importance justifying the intervention of the Attorney General 1is
raised."

(5) The district court's grant of an injunction was appro-
priate. "The district court's broad discretion in granting in-
junctions in these instances is not easily upset, and in the
face of appellant's own inability to recognize his transgressions
of the Act, we decline to assume that he will not violate the
Act in the future."

Staff: Frank E. Schwelb (Chief, Housing Section,
Civil Rights Division); Carl W. Gabel (Deputy
Chief, Housing Section, Civil Rights Division);
Martin Barenblat (Civil Rights Division)

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

FIFTH CIRCUIT RULES ON TESTING AND BACK PAY ISSUES IN EMPLOY -
MENT DISCRIMINATION CASE.

United States v. Georgia Power Company, et al. (C.A. 5;
No. 71-3447; decided February 14, 1973; DJ 170-19-28)

This suit was filed by the United States in 1969 to eliminate
alleged racially discriminatory employment practices of the
Georgia Power Company and local unions of the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. The district court entered a
final decree in September 1971 which ordered the defendants to
take certain steps to correct the effects of past discrimination,
but which failed to enjoin the use of an unvalidated employment
test and to award back pay or retroactive seniority to individual
victims of discrimination. Both the defendants and the United
States appealed. '

On the testing issue, a panel of the Fifth Circuit held that
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Guidelines on testing
are lawful under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and
provide a valid framework for determining whether a particular
test is predictive of job performance, as required by Griggs v.
Duke Power Company, 401 U.S. 424. The Court stated that tEe
Guidelines should be followed absent a showing that a ''cogent
reason exists for noncompliance' with their provisions.

With regard to our attempt to obtain back pay for victims
of discrimination, the Court of Appeals ruled that the legisla-
tive history of Title VII and its 1972 Amendments demonstrates
that Congress intended to authorize district courts to award
back pay in "pattern or practice' cases brought by the Attorney
General. The Court further held that back pay should be viewed
as an integral part of the relief granted to compensate victims
of past discrimination.
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district court relief granted with respect to revision of the
seniority system and elimination of the high school education
-hiring requirement.

On the cross-appeal by defendants, the Court upheld the .

Staff: David L. Rose (Chief, Employment Section,
Civil Rights Division); Steven B. Glassman
(Civil Rights Division)

PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS

FIFTH CIRCUIT RULES THAT A NEIGHBORHOOD BAR CONTAINING
AMUSEMENT DEVICES IS COVERED UNDER TITLE II OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS
ACT OF 1964 AS A "PLACE OF ENTERTAINMENT."

United States v. William DeRosier, d/b/a The Northwood Bar
(C.A. 5; No. 72-1039; decided January 12, 1973; DJ 167-18-101)

This public accommodations case was filed by the Department
against a West Palm Beach, Florida, bar for alleged discrimina-
tion against black prospective patrons. The complaint alleged
that the Northwood Bar was covered by the Act as a ''place of
entertainment” because customers were offered the use of a
juke box, shuffle board and pool table which had been manufactured
outside the state and had moved in interstate commerce. ’

The district court concluded that the mere presence of such e
amusement devices was insufficient to classify the bar as a
""place of entertainment.' The Department of Justice appealed and
a panel of the Fifth Circuit reversed.

The Court of Appeals ruled in favor of the Government's theory
and stated that the Civil Rights Act does not require that "enter-
tainment'" be of a certain variety or that a certain quantity of a
business' earnings be derived from the entertainment of its cus-
tomers. The Court cited Daniel v. Paul, 395 U.S. 298, as support
for its broad reading of the phrase, "place of entertainment."

One judge dissented on the grounds that the legislative
history of Title II indicated that Congress intended to exempt
such bars from coverage under the Act.

Staff: Gerald W. Jones (Chief, Voting and Public

' Accommodations Section, Civil Rights Division);

Walter W. Barnett (Director, Office of Planning,
Legislation and Appeals); Peter N. Mear (Former

attorney with the Civil Rights Division)
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CRIMINAL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Henry E. Petersen

COURTS OF APPEAL

'NARCOTICS AND DANGEROUS DRUGS

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES: SEARCH WARRANT ISSUED BEFORE LETTER
CONTAINING HEROIN WAS DELIVERED BY POSTAL SERVICE HELD VALID.

United States v. William Hamilton (C.A. 4, 72-2001,
January 26, 1973)

This appeal arose after the conviction of appellant on two
counts of importing and causing to be imported into the United
States approximately 25 grams of heroin in violation of 21 U.S.C.
952(a) and 960. After Customs officials came to suspect that
controlled substances were being sent through the mails to
153-A Ben Tillman Homes, Charleston Heights, South Carolina,
postal officials in South Carolina were instructed to hold any
mail of foreign orizin sent to that address. As a result -of this
hold order, a letter addressed. to the appellant, William Hamilton,
was examined at the Charleston Heights post office on March 6,
1972. When a field test of a powdery substance contained in the
letter revealed that the substance was heroin, postal officials -
made plans to make a controlled delivery of the letter to the
address in Charleston Heights. Before the delivery occurred, a
Customs agent appeared before a magistrate and obtained a search

‘warrant. In an affidavit executed before the magistrate, the

agent stated that an envelope containing heroin would be delivered
to the appellant's home and that no search would be conducted
until the letter had arrived.

Relying on the statement in Berger v. New York, 388 U.S. 41,
55 (1967) that '"Probable cause under the Fouth Amendment exists
where the facts and circumstances within the affiant's knowledge,
and of which he has reasonably trustworthy information, are suf-
ficient unto themselves to warrant a man of reasonable caution to
believe that an offense has been or is being committed,' the
Fourth Circuit held that the magistrate had probable cause to
believe that a parcel containing heroin would be delivered to the
Hamilton residence; and hence, there was substantial evidence be-
fore the magistrate which indicated that heroin would be on the
premises when searched.

The Court of Appeals quickly disposed of three other issues,
holding that a statement made by the defendant was properly ad-
mitted; that the trial judge had properly charged the jury and
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that thé defendant was given a fair and impartial trial. i
Staff: United States Attorney John K. Grisso
Assistant United States Attorney Leonel S.
Lofton (District of South Carolina)

VIOLATIONS OCCURRING PRIOR TO NEW CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT
ARE NOT PROSECUTED UNDER THE NEW ACT.

1 United States v. Joe Earl Mallow and Phillip Dean Johnson
(C.A.” 5, December 18, 1972, No. 72-2059; DJ 12-75-1310; 470 F.2d

967)

Defendants were convicted of violating 21 U.S.C. 176(a), now
repealed, for the unlawful importation of marihuana. The criminal
acts occurred in January 1971 and the indictment was returned in
September 1971. The new Controlled Substances Act became effec-
tive in May 1971.

The Court of Appeals stated that the savings clause in the
new act, 21 U.S.C. 171 (Historical Note), is plain in its mean-
ing. 'The clause clearly states that the repealing statute has
no effect on prosecutions, for 'any violation of law occurring .
prior to the effective date' of May 1, 1971. The determining
factor, then, is not when the prosecution began but when the ‘
violation of law allegedly occurred.'" Judgments were affirmed.

e

~ Staff: United States Attorney William S. Sessions
A Assistant United States Attorney James W.
Kerr (W.D. Texas)
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INTERNAL SECURITY DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General A. William Olson

FOREIGN AGENTS REGISTRATION ACT
OF 1938, AS AMENDED

The Registration Section of the Internal Security Division
administers the Foreign Agents Registration Act of 1938, as
amended, (22 USC 611) which requires registration with the Attor-
ney General by certain persons who engage within the United
States in defined categories of activity on behalf of foreign
nrincipals.

MARCH 1973

During the first half of this month the following new registra-
tions were filed with the Attorney General pursuant to the
provisicns of the Act:

Martin S. Weiss of Washington, D.C, registered as agent of
the European Free Trade Association, Geneva, Switzerland.
Registrant will disseminate the EFTA Bulletin within the United
States on behalf of the foreign principal. The agreement is of
indefinite duration and registrant will bill the principal for
fees based on nominal charges for the services involved in the
distribution of the above publication.

David Eric Spencer of New York City registered as agent of
the Government of El1 Salvador. Registrant has been anpointed
donorary Consul of El1 Salvador in New York and as such plans to
translate and prepare speeches and articles to be delivered to
the United Nations by the Ambassador of E1 Salvador. Additional
activities of the registrant on behalf of the foreign principal
are tc be negotiated.

Silverstein and Mullens of Washington, D.C. registered as
agent of the Government of the Netherlands Antilles, Ministry
of Finance. Registrant will represent the principal with respect
to pending legislation in an attempt to modify H.R. 3577 con-
cerning the Interest Equilization Tax. Registrant's fee will be
$500 te $1,060 for the contemplated services plus an hourly fee
for special services of $40 to $100. Leonard L. Silverstein,
Arthur R. Schreiber and Richard Mullens filed short-form state-
ments as attorneys and all receive a percentage of the partnership
profits. 'Ulrico A. Reale filed a short-form registration as
Consultant doing research and reports a salary of $20,000 per
year.
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Dewey, Ballantine, Bushby, Palmer and Wood of New York City
registered as agent of Banque Belge pour 1'Etranger S.A., B?ussels,
Belgium. Registrant is to act as legal counsel to the foreign
principal in matters relating to funds on deposit with the
European American Banking Association and will represent thg
principal with respect to any existing or proposed.leglslatlon
or regulation of the United States Government applicable to the
interests of the principal. Registrant will render services
on the firm's usual fee plus expenses basis. The following
persons filed short-form registration statements as attorneys
working directly on the foreign account: R. Burdell Bixby,

Hugh N. Fryer, Arthur Windels, Jr., Andrew J. Connelly,
Bradford J. Race, Jr., and Charles Jurrist. :

Activities of persons or organizations already registered
under the Act:

Jack P. Whitehouse, d/b/a Whitehouse Associates of Encino,
California filed exhibits in connection with his representation
of the Japan Trade Center, Los Angeles. Registrant will con-
duct a public relations and advertising program to promote con-
sumption of Japanese forest mushrooms through the West Coast area.
Registrant's agreement with the foreign principal began on
December 1, 1972 and calls for a budget of $8,000 for supermarket
demonstrations, $5,000 for advertising, $4,000 for publicity,
$1,250.00 for miscellaneous activities and an agency fee of
$4,250.00. Jack P. Whitehouse filed a short-form registration
statement as public relations counsel for this account and reports
a fee of §1,000 per month plus reimbursable expenses.

Belgian National Tourist Office filed exhibits in connection
with its representation of its parent in Brussels. Registrant
is a branch of its parent and isfunded by the Belgian Government.
I'ts sole purpose within the United States is the promotion of
tourist traffic to Belgium. '

Arthur L. Quinn and Arthur Lee Quinn of Washington, D.C.
filed copies of their new agreements with Tate and Lyle, Ltd.,
London and Belize Sugar Industries, British Honduras. For Tate
and Lyle registrant acts as legal counsel including anpearances
before appropriate agencies of the Federal Government in connec-
tion with principal's interests in sugar refining, chemical
manufacture and distribution, engineering, machinery manufacture
and supply, shipping and commodity distribution and trading.
Registrant's retainer for these services is $25,000 per year
plus expenses. For Belize registrant acts as legal counsel in
matters relating to entry and marketing of British Honduras sugar

]
'.
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in the United States for a retainer of $15,000 per vear plus
expenses.

Rhodesian Information Office of Washington, D.C. filed
exhibits in connection with its representation of the Ministry of
Information, Government of Rhodesia. Registrant is an arm of the
Government of Rhodesia and is staffed by members of the Rhodesian
Public Service. Its fees and expenses are allocated by the
Rhodesian Treasury subject each year to the approval of the
Rhodesian Parliament. Registrant engages in political activities
to the extent of seeking to promote the normalization of rela-
tions between the United States and Rhodesia through the dis-
semination of informational material and contact with individuals
and organizations in the U.S. working toward a similar objective
as well as contacts with appropriate officials and members of
the U.S. legislature.

The following persons filed short-form registration state-
ments in support of registrations already on file: ‘

On behalf of Burson-Marsteller, New York City whose foreign
principal is the Government of India Tourist Office:
Bob Schaeffer as Public Relations Account Executive engaging in
the promotion of tourism to India and reporting a salary of
$14,000 per vear.

On behalf of the Singapore Economic Development Board, New
York: Choon-Hway Ong as Assistant Director promoting U.S.
manufacturing and marketing operations in Singapore and engaging
in informational services. Mr. Ong reports a salary of $§1,200
per month.

On behalf of Porter International Company, of Washington,
D.C. whose foreign principal is TASS, news agency of the U.S.S.R.
Margaret Blasinsky as Managing Editor of Soviet Business ]
Economic Report and reporting a salarv of »8,500 per year.

On behalf of the Mexican Government Tourism Department, San
Diego: Jose Rodrigo Alfaro Sales as Delegate engaged in the pro-
motion of tourism and reporting a salary of $800 per month.

. On behalf of the Mexican Government Tourism Department,
Miami: Wilbert O. Sanchez H. as Regional Director engaged in the
promotion of tourism and reporting a salary of $772.30 per month.

On behalf of the Mexican National Tourist Council, New York:
Luis Suarez as Press Coordinator engaged in tourist promotion and
reporting a salary of $1,000 per month.



On behalf of the Japan Broadcasting Corporation, New York i
City: Komei Kazama as Chief Engineer_covering and reporting on
United States news and reporting a salary to $655 per month.

On behalf of the United States Japan Trade Council of
Washington, D.C.: H. William Tanaka as attorney reporting a
salary of $525 per month.

On behalf of Industrial Development Authority Ireland,
New York City: Patrick J. Sullivan as public relations and
advertising consultant and reporting a salary of $2,277 per
month.

On behalf of Central News Agency of China, Washington Bureau:
Rock Jo-Shiu Leng as Staff Correspondent reporting a salary of
$425 per month plus $180 monthly housing allowance.

On behalf of Japan Trade Center, Los Angeles: Kenjiro
Takada as General Affairs Manager and reporting a salary of
$1,400 per month and Motoo Nemoto as Head of Tokyo Metropolitan
Area Section and reporting a salary of $1,500 per month.

On behalf of Ragan § Mason of Washington, D.C. whose

foreign principal is the Department of Tourism, Hamilton, .
Bermuda: William F. Ragan, John N. Mason, Andrew A. Normandeau, "\ '
Gerald A. Malia, Edward M. Shea, and Brian P. Murphy as attorneys ~

engaged in legal and legislative representation of the principal.
The firm of Ragan § Mason is retained by the principal for a
yearly fee of §Z0,000 plus expenses. All of the above individuals
are regular salaried employees of the registrant law firm.

On behalf of Japan Trade Center, Chicago: Mashiro Soejima
as director engaged in the promotion of trade between the United
States and Japan and reporting a salary of $1,800 per month.

On behalf of Sharon, Pierson, Semmes, Crolius and Finley
of Washington, D.C. whose foreign principal is the Mauritius
Chamber of Agriculture and Sugar Syndicate: Sheldon E. Hochberg
as attorney engaged in legal and legislative representation of
the foreign principal. Mr. Hochberg is a regular salaried em-
ployee of registrant law firm.

On behalf of the Australian Information Service of New York
City: Frank H. Long as Films Officer reporting a salary of
$12,073 per year and Cecil Slocombe as Journalist disseminating
Australian news ‘to the media and general informational material
and reporting a salary of $13,353 per year..

’!
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On behalf of the Jamaica Tourist Board, Chicago: Anthony
Evans as Sales Representative engaged in informational activi-
ties and contacts with the travel media and carriers. Mr. Evans
reports a salary of $775 per month.

On behalf of the Spanish National Tourist Office of New
York: Carlos Sanchez Pachon as Director doing public relations
work in connection with the promotion of tourism to Spain and
reporting a salary of $1,200 per month.

On behalf of Infoplan International, Inc. of New York City
whose foreign principal is the Government of the Bahama Islands:
Leslie Lieber and Meredith S. Conley engaging in public relations
activities in connection with the dissemination of information
on the activities and politics of the Bahamas Government within
the United States. Mr. Lieber reports a salary of $500 per week
and Mr. Conley reports a salary of $15,000 per year.

On behalf of the Industrial Development Authoritvy - Ireland
cf New York City: John Patrick Fleming as Communications Execu-
tive engaged in public relations and advertising to encourage
United States establishment of manufacturing facilities in Ireland
and reporting a salary of $1,200 per month.
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Assistant Attorney General Kent Frizzell

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION 6
COURT OF APPEALS

EMINENT DOMAIN

SCHOOLHOUSE BUILT BY STATE ON INDIAN RESERVATION HELD A TRADE
FIXTURE, TITLE RESTING IN STATE. : '

United States v. 62.39 Acres; More or Less, Situated in
Cattaraugus County, New York (C.A. 2, No. 72-2074, March 5, 1973;
DJ 33-33-881-23) 7 -

The United States condemned a tract of land located on the
Seneca Indians' Allegany Reservation. New York State had pre-
viously, without an express contract or rent payments, constructed
a schoolhouse on the tract with state. funds. The State, at its
own expense, had used the schoolhouse for the education of Indian
children. At the condemnation trial, the State and the Seneca
Nation disputed ownership of the building. The State contended
the schoolhouse was akin to a trade fixture, with the State re-
taining ownership, while the Senecas argued that title passed to
them when the building was annexed to the realty. The district
court found that New York retained ownership of the building. ;
The Court of Appeals, without opinion at oral argument, affirmed. ‘

Staff: Robert L. Klarquist (Land and Natural Resources -
Division); Assistant United States Attorney
C. Donald O'Connor (W.D. N.Y.)

DISTRICT COURT

ENVIRONMENT

. THE NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT; ADEQUACY OF IMPACT
STATEMENT; URBAN RENEWAL - NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM.

Dick Jones,et al. v. District of Columbia Redevelopment Land
Agency, et al. (Civil No. 2253-7Z, D. D.C., preliminary injunction
granted March 7, 1973, DJ 90-1-4-603)

Plaintiffs sought to enjoin the Redevelopment Land Agency,
the National Capital Planning Commission and HUD from taking any
action in regard to 14th Street NDP until, among others, an
impact statement had been filed. (NDP's are funded in annual
increments called "action years'".) In NDP-4 the court found that
because everything done to date was in the category of planning
without direct tangible consequences of an environmental character,
no impact statement was necessary at this 'stage. However, in
NDP-Z and NDP-3, where planning was completed and only implementa- '
tion remains, the court found that the "'negative'" statements were ’
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mere conclusory documents predicting a beneficial environmental
impact, and, as such, inadequate. Accordingly, the court held
that impact statements must be prepared for both action years.
However, observing that a halt in renewal activity would be
disastrous, the court stayed issuance of a preliminary injuncticn
for 60 davs to give defendants an opportunity to prepare and

file impact statements.

In addition, the court held that because the dwellings
acquired were blighted when purchased by RLA and were used cnly
temporarily to ease the trauma of relocation, strict compliance
with D.C. Housing Code was not required. Also, the court held
that RLA supervision of PAC elections and meeting, which plain-
tiffs requested, would run counter to the concept of an inde-
pendent Project Area Committee (PAC).

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney
" Nathan Dodell (D. D.C:)
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‘ ‘ APPENDIX I1

PUBLIC LAW 92-539, "ACT FOR THE PROTECTION
OF FOREIGN OFFICIALS AND OFFICIAL GUESTS OF
THE UNITED .STATES" (86 STAT. 1070, ADDING
TO OR REVISING TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,
SECTIONS 112, 970, 1116, 1117, AND 1201),
APPROVED OCTOBER 24, 1972

On October 24, 1972, the President approved Public Law
No. 92-539, an Act for the Protection of Foreign Officials and
Official Guests of the United States. The Act substantialiy
= reflects the Criminal Division's draft legislation on the subject
& and is the culmination of a prolonged and intensive joint effort
e by the Departments of State and Justice to provide a basis for
Federal action when necessary to deal with violence inflicted
upon the person or property of foreign visitors to the United
States.* In addition a general provision is added for con-
spiracvy to commit murder. Jurisdiction over kidnaping 1is ex-
# tended.

Sections 2 and 3 of the Act expressly recognize and preserve

existing local jurisdiction and power over such misconduct.
% However, section 2 states the intent of the Act to provide con-
S current jurisdiction in the United States, based on the finding

' that ©. . . acts of violence committed against foreign officials
cr their family members in the United States or against official
guests of the United States adversely affect the foreign rela-
tions of the United States."

B e

The existence of a form of 18 U.S.C. 112 for almost 200 vears
since it was enacted in 1790 is a reflection of the recognition
of the possible impact on our foreign relations, even though
prior to the present Act coverage was limited in Section 112 to
assaults on ambassaders, foreign ministers, and heads of foreign
states. -

*The Department's original legislative proposal, in additio:
to coverage for foreign officials, would have amended 18 U.S5.C.
1114 to cover all Tederal emplovees while acting within the scone
of their emnrloyment. Congress, however, separated the Federal
official provisions from the foreign official provisions of the
Department's proposal. Thus, a person who assaults a United
States diplomat in a foreign country cannot be punished even if
he is later found and/or returned to the United States, and even
if the country responsible for the situs of the crime takes no
action to punish the crime.
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Inasmuch as ". . . complete power over international affairs
is in the National Government . . .'" (United States V. Belmont,
301 U.S. 324, 332 (1937), the Act, in light of the congressional
finding, is clearly '". . . necessary and proper for carrying into

Execution the foregoing Powers [U.S. Const., art. I, sec. 8] and

all other Powers vested by this Constitution in the Government
of the United States, or in any Department or Officer thereof."
Compare Wickard v. Filburn, 317 U.S. 111 (1942), and see United
States v. Ortega, 27 U.S. 467, 11 Wheat. 467 (1826).

Murder

"Section 1116. Murder or manslaughter of foreign
officials or official guests

"(a) Whoever kills a foreign official or
official guest shall be punished as provided under
sections 1111 and 1112 of this title, except that
any such person who is found guilty of murder in
the first degree shall be sentenced to imprison-
ment for 1life."

Following the pattern of 18 U.S.C. 1114 (Protection of offi-
cers and employees of the United States), the Act adds to title
18 a new section 1116--Murder or manslaughter of foreign officials
or official guests--relying on the definitions and punishments
provided in 18 U.S.C. 1111 and 1112, except for limitation of the
punishment for first degree murder to mandatory life imprisonment.
Subsections 1116(b) and (c) contain the definitions of key terms
used in that section and in the following sections on kidnaping,
assault, and protection of property.

Foreign Official Defined

"(b) For the purpose of this section
'foreign official' means--
g

"(1) a Chief of State cr the political
equivalent, President, Vice President, Prime
Minister, Ambassador, Foreign Minister, or other
officer of cabinet rank or above of a foreign
government or the chief executive cfficer of an
international organization, or any person who
has previously served in such capacity, and any
megber of his family, while in the United States:
and .

"(2) any person of a foreign nationality
who is duly notified to the United States as an
officer or emplovee of a foreign government or
international organization, and who is in the
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’ llnited States on official business, and any
member of his family whose presence in the
United States 1s in connection with the

' presence of such officer or employee."

e

"Foreign official" (subsection 1116(b)) includes two distinct
: categories. In the first group are heads of state (Chief of
: state or political eguivalent, President, Vice President, Prime
3 ‘ Minister), foreign m1n15ters, ambassadors, and other officers of
czbinet rank or above of a foreign government, chief executive
cfficers of international organizations, persons who have for-
merly served in such capacities, members of their families.
"Politicai eauivalent' refers to the top official of a country,
who in some instances mav not be a country's formally designated

ve

‘Chief

of State.” House Report 92-1268, 92d Cong., 2d Sess.
. (1972) (hereinafter Report), p.8. The added clause '"while in the
7 United States"” serves as a territorial limitation (see 18 U.S.C.
: 5) as to all of the new violations directed against this categor
2 of persons, but the purpose of the victim's presence is immate-
: rial. As indicated in the Report, page 2, '". . . the term

; ited te, a member of the government of any nation who
is the head of an exccutive department, the presiding officer of
l

'officer of cabinet rank or above' is intended to include, withou:
T

. qa

o a natLOu 1 legislative bodv, or a member of a nation's highest

‘ '= judicic ibunal

2 In the second category (subsection 1116(b)(2)) are persons
of foreign nationality uho are duly notified to the United States
as officers or emplovees of a forelgn government or international
: ' organization but only if the person's presence in the United
21 States is attributable to official business. Procedures for
foreign governments tc make ''motification to the United States'
(as well as for "designation" as an official guest) have been
published as an amendment to 22 C.F.R. Part 2 (Fed. R. Crim.
_ P.27; Fed. R. Civ. P. 44) by contacting the Chief of Protocol,
. Department of State, Washington, D.C.. 20520. "The category of
officers and emplovees of foreign governments includes those at
embassies and consulates, those at missions of their government s
o 1n*e1nat10nal organiz at10n< and those at trade or commercial

offices of foreign government. Report, pp. 2, 8, 11. The

defini ion al:o AnLLudex any member of the family of a foreign
official in this second category, but unlike the first category
a family memb@r 3 presence in the United States must be in con-

nection with the presence in the United States of the related
foreign official.
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Other Definitions_

"(c) For the purpose of this section:

"(1) 'Foreign government' means the
government of a foreign country, irrespective
of recognition hy the linited States.

"(2) 'International corganization' means
a public international organization designated
as such pursuant to section 1 of the Inter-
national Organizations Immunity Act (22 U.S.C.
288).

"(3) 'Family' includes {a} a spouse,
parent, brother or sister, child, or person
to whom the foreign official stands in loco
parentis, or (b) any other person living in
his household and related to the foreign
official by biood or marriage.

"(4) 'Official guest' means a citizen
or national of a foreign countrv present in
the United States as an official guest of the
government of the United States pursuant to
designation as such by the Secretary of State."

Unlike 18 U.S.C. 11, subsection 1116(c) (1) defines the
term "foreign government' without a limitation to countries ''v
which the United States 1s at peace’ and excludes from that te
"a faction or body of insurgents within a countrv." As in 18
i1.5.C. 11, recognition by the United States is not a factOI.
hus, North Vietnam is a "foreign governﬁent,” under the defini-
ion in section 1116{ci{1}, and the Viet kJaQ vould not guality,
and China, although unrecognized, does qualif:

th

»‘ b-"

Reference in subsection 1116(c)(2) to section 1 of the
International Organizations Immunities Act (22 U.S.C. 288) serves
in the definition of "international organizaticn'" to provide in
effect a specific list of such organizations. The list apmesars
in the note following 22 U.S.C. 288. It currently includes
organizations whose activities are well known, e.g., the United
Nations, as well as a number of relatively obscure organizations
involved in rather esoteric activity such as the Coffee Studv
Group. United States Attorneys may check for last minute changes
and obtain the Federal Register citation to any new Executive
orders by inquiry of the Bureau of International Organization
Affairs, Department of State.

"Family'" is defined in subsection 1116{(c)(3) to include
spouse, parent, brother or sister, child or person to whom a
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i "foreign official" stands in loco parentis and any other person
living in his household and related to him by blood or marriage.
The term "'foreign official" is underlined to emphasize that the
protection of these new statutory provisions does not extend to
the families of "official guests.' However, when appropriate,
familv members may be designated '"official- guests" in their own
right.

Z This latter categorv ("official guests') was added in the

“ course of Senate action in response to the monstrous attack on

N the Israeli Olvmpic Team in Munich, Germany. See Senate Report
. 92-1105, 92d Cong., 2d Sess. (1972), p. 9. Subsection 1116(c) (4)
£ defines "official guest' as a citizen or national of a foreign

i countrv present in the United States as an official guest of the
2. Government of the linited States pursuant to designation as such
by the Secretary of State. As with notification, the Chief of
Protocol of the Department of State will be the source of certi-
ficates of designation.

: _
t Conspiracy to Murder

"Section 1117. Conspiracy to murder

: "If two or more persons conspire to violate
B section 1111, 1114, or 1116 of this title, and
‘ ' one or more of such persons do anv overt act to

effect the-object of the conspiracy, each shall
be punished by imprisonment for any term of
vears or for life." : '

In section 1117 for the first time, conspiracy to murder is
specially denounced. Conspiracy to violate existing section 1111
(Murder within the special and maritime jurisdiction of the United
States), 1114 (Protection of officers and employees of the United
States) and new section 1116 is made punishable by imprisonment
for any term of years or for life. This parallels the existing
special conspiracyv provision for kidnaping. See 18 U.S.C. 1201(c).

Kidnaping
"Section 1201. Kidnaping

"(a) Whoever unlawfully seizes, confines,
inveigles, decovs, kidnaps, abducts, or carries
away and holds for ransom or reward or otherwise
any person, except in the case of a minor by the

© parent thereof, when:

"(1) the person is willfully transported
. in interstate or foreign commerce;
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"(2) any such act again:zt the person ix
done within the special maritiie and terri-
torial jurisdiction of the United States:

"(3) any such act against the person is
done within the special aircraft jurisdiction
of the 'Inited States as defined in section
101(32) of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958,
as amended (49 U.S.C. 1301(32%};, or

"(43 the person is a forzign cfficiail
as defined in section 1116(b) or an nofficial
guest as defined in section 1116{c)(4) of
this title,

shall be punished by imprisonment for any tern
of vears or for life.

"(h) With respect to sub:eoction (ay (1),
above, the failure to release the victim with
in twentv-four hours after he shall have been
unlawfully seized, confined, inveaigled, de-
coved, kidnaped, abducted, or carried away
shall create a rebuttable presusption that
such person has been transported in interstate
or foreign commerce.

"(c) If two or more perscons conspire 1o
violate this section and onc or merée of such
persons do anv cvert act to effect the objecs
of the conspiracy, each shall be ounizhed by
imprisonment for any term of vears or for
life."

In the revision of 18 U.S.C. 1201, the act of kidnaping a
"foreign official™ or "official guest" is punishable without
regard to interstate transportation of the victim. Also new
provisions in section 1201 provide Federal jurisdiction over
kidnaping within the special maritime and territorial or air-
craft jurisdiction of the United States (18 U.S.C. 7: 49 U.S.C.
1301(32)). The rebuttable presumption of transportation in
interstate or foreign commerce upon lapse of 24 hours without
release of the victim is retained for usc when jurisdiction 1s
based on such transportation. The permissibie punishment .is
reduced to imprisonment for any term of vears or for life, but
no statutory proof of harm to the victim 1s required to support
any sentence which may be adjudged. - Anv harm to the victim of
course remains fair matter for consideration bv the court in
imposing sentence.
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"Section 112. Protection of foreign officials
and official guests

PRRIVARN

"(aj Whoever assaults, strikes, wounds,
imprisons, or offers violence to a foreign
official or official guest shall be fined
nct more than $5,000, or imprisoned not more
than three years, or both. Whoever in the
commission of anv such act uses a deadly or
dangerous weapon shall be fined not more than
$10,000, or imprisoned not more than ten years,
or hoth.

i

‘b) Whoever willfully intimidates,

, threatens, or harasses a foreign
official or an official guest, or willfully
ohstructs a foreign official in the perform-
ance ot nhis duties, shall be fined not more
than $500, or imprisoned not more than six
months, or both.

“{¢) Whoever within the United States
hut outside the District of Columbia and
within one hundred feet of anv building or
premisces belonging to or used or occupied by
. a foreign government or by a foreign official
- fer diplomatic or -consular purposes, or as a
mission to an international organization, or
. as a residence of a foreign official, or
i lbelonging to or used or occupied by an inter-
national organization for official business
or residential purposes, publicly--

"(1) parades, pickets, displavs any
& flag, banner, sign, placard, or device, or
utters anv word, phrase, sound, or noise,
for the purpose of intimidating, coercing,
threatening, or harassing any foreign of-
ficial or obstructing him in the performance
of his duties, or

"(2) congregates with two or more
other persons with the intent to perform
anv of the aforesaid acts or to violate
subsection (a) or (bh) of thig section,
shall bhe fined not more than $500, or
imprisoned not more than six months, or

‘II’ ‘ both.
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"(d) For the purpose of this section
'foreign official', 'foreign government',
'international organization', and 'official
guest' shall have the same meanings as those
provided in sections 1116(b) and (c) of this
title.

"(e) Nothing contained in this section
shall be construed or applied so as to abridge
the exercise of rights guaranteed under the
first amendment to the Constitution of the
United States."

As amended by the Act, section 112 now covers one who
assaults, strikes, wounds, imprisons, or offers violence to a
"foreign official™ or "official guest,'" again referring back to
the definitions in section 1116. In addition to broadening the
classes of persons covered, a new subsection 112(b) makes it a
misdemeanor to willfully intimidate, coerce, threaten, or harass
a foreign official or an official guest or willfully obstruct a
foreign official in the performance of his duties. Note that
protection against obstruction extends only to a foreign official
who must be engaged in the performance of his duties as a foreign
official at the time of the violation.

Precedent for subsection 112(b) is in D.C. Code, section
22-1115, which will be further discussed in connection with
subsection 112(c).

In the Senate Report, supra, p. 18, the following acts are
listed as illustrative of the misconduct intended to be.covered
in subsection 112(b) if done "with intent to intimidate, alarm,
or persecute a foreign official or an official guest."

(1) Following him [foreign official or official
guest] about in a public place or places after being requested
not to do so.

) (2) Engaging in a course of conduct, including the
use of abusive language, or repeatedly committing acts which alarm,
intimidate or persecute him and which serve no legitimate purpose;
or . .

(3) Communicating with him anonymously by tele-
phone, telegraph, or otherwise in a manner likely to cause annoy-
ance or-alarm, or making repeated telephone calls to him whether
or not conversation ensues, with no purpose of legitimate communi-
cation.

_The 1list is not all-inclusive (ibid., p. 19) and other ways
of violation, either more sophisticated or crude, will no doubt
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occur to one bent on harassment, etc. The Senate Report, p. 19,
cites the comparable provisions in New York Penal Code, sections
240.25, 240.30. Other state and Federal law of more general
applicability will also reach most, if not all of such activitv.
Note particularly in Federal law: 18 U.S.C. 875, 876, concerning
threatening communications, and 47 U.S.C. 223, concerning harass-
ing telephone calls.

Unlike 18 U.S.C. 111, the word '"forcibly" does not appear
in relation to "obstructs'" in subsection 112(b). See Long v.
United States, 119 F.2d 717 (4th Cir. 1952), but compare District
of Columbia v. Little, 339 U.S. 1 (1950), reading an element of
force into a similar provision tc avoid conflict with a constitu-
tional right of a person. Whether a completely passive refusal
to act will constitute an obstruction, e.g., refusing to unlock
a door, is subject to question, and the decision could well turn
on the existence of a legal duty to perform the act or general
privilege to so refuse. See in this connection the discussion
and cases cited on resistance or interference with an officer
in 48 A.L.R. 746 et seq. :

Subsection 112(c) covers objectionable activities "within
100 feet of any building or premises belonging to or used or
occupied by a foreign government or by a foreign official for
diplomatic or consular purposes, or as a mission to an interna-
tional organization, or as a residence of a foreign official, or
belonging to or used or occupied by an international organization
for official purposes or residential purposes. . . .'" This sub-
section 1is intended '". . . to protect the peace, dignity and
security of foreign officials and guests in their embassies, con-
sulates, missions, residences, and offices.'" Senate Report,
supra, p. 19. Note that premises of "official guests' are not
within this subsection. D.C. Code, section 22-1115 is again
analogous to this new subsection, and, in light thereof, the
new subsection contains an express exception and does not apply
in the District of Columbia where the protected zone for both
persons and premises begins at 502 feet. 3cnate Report, ibid.

Specific forms of objectionable conduct are listed in para-
graph (1), with a more general provision in paragraph (2), but
the subsection applies only to acts done publicly. The subsec-

tion applies specifically to cnc wie . . . =arades, pickets,
displays any flag, banner, sign, placard, or device, or utters any
word, phrase, sound, or noise . . ." but only if the purpose of .

the conduct is to intimidate, coerce, or harass a foreign official
or to obstruct him in the performance of his duties. The general
form of prohibited conduct consists of congregating witi: two or
more other persons with intent to perform one of the listed acts
or to violate the preceding subsections of section 112.

Reference in this subsection to purpose and intent requires
proof of knowledge of the protected character of the person or
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premises concerned. This is in sharp contrast to all other puni-
tive provisions in the new statute, wherein the protected charac-
ter of the person or property concerned is a jurisdictional ele-
ment only.* Requirement for proof of knowledge as to this subsec-
tion serves generally the same purpose as the D.C. Code proviso,
conditioning culpability upon either lack of a permit or refusal
to disperse on order. Ordinarily violators will be put on notice
by a request to desist and disperse and proof of such a request
will supply circumstantial evidence of knowledge in prosecutions
of those who fail to honor the request. See in this connection
the comments on 18 U.S.C. 1752 (Protection of the President) in
18 U.S. Attorney. Bull. 753, 755. Punishment for violation of
this subsection is also within the petty offense range of a $500
fine and imprisonment for six months.

Subsection 112(e) provides against any construction or appli-
cation of section 112 '". . . so as to abridge the exercise of
rights guaranteed under the first amendment to the Constitution
of the United States." 1In large part the comparative specificity
of the section and limited radius of application go far to avoid
any such abridgment. Report, p. 9, and Senate Report, supra,

p. 19. The constitutionality of the comparable D.C. Code pro-
vision was upheld against a defense predicated on the first amend-
ment in Frend v. United States, 100 F.2d 691 (D.C. Cir. 1938),
cert. denied 306 U.S5. 640, and the validity of Frend was reaf-
Tirmed in Zaimi v. United States, 261 A. 2d 233 (D.C. Ct. App.
1970) (reversed on construction issue, Zaimi v. United States,
No. 23933 (D.C. Cir., February 7, 1973)), Jews for Urban Justice
v. Wilson, 311 F. Supp. 1158 (D.D.C. 1970), and United States

v. Travers, Crim. No. U.S. 42935-69 (D.C. Ct. Gen. Sess. 1970,
unreported opinion). The opinion in Frend, supra, contained

the following comment: '

"As in war the bearers of flags of truce are
sacred, or else wars would be interminable, so in peace
ambassadors, public ministers, and consuls, charged
with friendly national intercourse, are objects of
especial respect and protection, each according to the
rights belonging to his rank and station. The law of
nations, therefore, requires every government to take
all reasonable precautions to prevent the doing of the
things which the [D.C. statute protecting embassies]
makes unlawful. The rule arises out of the necessity

*Such jurisdiction must be alleged and proved, but knowledge
thereof in the defendant is immaterial. See Senate Report, p. 16
gmurder), p. 17 (kidnaping), and 10 A.L.R. 3d 833, discussing the
issue of scienter in the context of 18 U.S.C. 111 (assault on
Federal officer).
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of the protection of nations in their intercourse with
each other, and imposes on the Government of the United
States responsibility to foreign nations for all viola-
tions by the United States of their international obli-
gations. United States v. Arjona, 120 U.S. 479, 483--
485 . . . . This responsibility includes the duty of
protecting the residence of an ambassador or minister
against invasion as well as against any other act-
tending to disturb the peace of dignity of the mission
or of the member of the mission.'" (100 F.2d at 693)
(Footnotes omitted).

Thus, the general power of the United States to protect its
foreign relations includes the specific power to limit demon-
strations by enactment of subsection 112(c).

Destruction of Property

"Section 970. Protection of property occupied by
foreign governments

"(a) Whoever willfully injures, damages, or destroys,
or attempts to injure, damage, or destroy, any property, real
or personal, located within the United States and belo_nging

- to or utilized or occupied by any foreign government or -
international organization, by a foreign official or official
‘guest, shall be fined not more than $10,000, or imprisoned
not more than five years, or both.

"(b) For the purpose of this section
'foreign official,' 'foreign government'
'international organization,' and 'official
guest' shall have the same meanings as those
provided in sections 1116(b) and (c) of this
title."

Rounding out the protection afforded activities foreign offi-
cials and official guests, the new statute adds a section 970 to
Title 18 which provides for a fine of up to $10,000 and imprison-
ment for up to five years for one who ". . . willfully injures,
damages, or destroys . . . any property, real or personal, located
within the United States and belonging to or utilized or occupied
by any foreign government or international organization, by a
foreign official or official guest. . . ." Attempts are also
covered. Except for the use of foreign entities as a jurisdic-
tional base, this section is little different in nature and
scope from the various provisions against malicious mischief in
18 U.S.C. ch. 65. . Bombing attacks not clearly covered in 18 U.S.C.
844 (i) would clearly fall within the provisions of this new sec-
tion. Subsection 970(b) imports for this section the definitions
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' in section 1116. In addition to covering embassies, consulates,
missions to international organizations, the places of residence

i of foreign officials and official guests, trade or commercial

' offices of foreign governments and premises and property of inter-
national organizations, this section also covers automobiles
and other vehicles and personal property, under the requisite

£ ownership, use or possession, whether the property is used for

H official or unofficial purposes. Senate Report, supra, p. 19.

Note that only property within the United States is covered,

but 18 U.S.C. 956 covers conspiracy in the United States to

injure properties of foreign governments abroad.

Investigative Jurisdiction

Responsibility for the Federal investigation of all viola-
tions of the Act has been assigned to the FBI.

O
A
vk
I4

Protective Responsibilities

The assignment of sole Federal jurisdiction to the FBI to
investigate violations of the Act takes cognizance of the pro-
tective responsibilities of the Department of the Treasury under
o 3 U.5.C. 202 and 18 U.S.C. 3056 and, thus, does not limit or
y 1 interfere with the power of the Secretary of the Treasury in the
- ‘ discharge of his statutory protective responsibilities. The Act
covers an estimated 167,000 persons. Onlyv a few of such persons
will at any one time be exposed to sufficient hazard of planned,
deliberate attack or conspiracy (18 U.S.C. 371) to that end so
as to warrant provision of protective services, but United States
Attorneys should immediately furnish information indicating the
existence of such a hazard to the FBI field office for FBI dis-
semination to the U.S. Secret Service, Department of State, and
other interested persons and agencies. Likewise, United States
Attorneys should continue to assist the U.S. Secret Service in
coordinating and obtaining the support of local agencies in the
provision of protective services.

AN i

Authority to Initiate Prosecution

All prosecutions under the Act must receive the approval of
the appropriate Division of the Department prior to the initia-
tion of proceedings. The Department will authorize prosecution
only in those few instances where substantial reasons appear for
Federal action. Note, however, that if a protected person or
activity is not involved, United States Attorneys retain their
usual power to authorize prosecution as to the added general
substantive crime of conspiracy to murder and the kidnapings
over which new jurisdiction is added under the Act and will re-

‘ _ ceive reports of such violations on a direct referral basis.
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Preference for Local Disposition

Section 3 of the Act is a rule of construction that prevents
the Act from preempting local law. This reflects the statutory
recognition in section 2 of the Act of the traditional primary
responsibility of local law enforcement agencies for handling
common crimes. The purpose of the Act is to create in the '".
United States jurisdiction, concurrent with that of the States,
to proceed against only those acts committed against foreign of-
ficials which interfere with its conduct of foreign affairs."
Senate Report, supra, p. 8.

United States Attorneys should coordinate with FBI field
offices concerning liaison with local law enforcement officials.
For assistance in this regard and in handling contacts with rep-
resentatives of foreign governments, copies of letters from the
FBI and Department of State, which were both sent to foreign
governments and to the heads of all local law enforcement
agencies, are reproduced at the end of this item. The letters
both emphasize the intent of Congress, that local agencies con-
tinue to handle the bulk of common crimes committed against
protected persons. Note that as an adjunct to effective use of
the Act for its intended purpose, the FBI requested local agencies
to report any information concerning possible violations of the
Act and intelligence information relating to threatened viola-
tions.

Impetus for passage of the Act flowed from the national

~interest in safeguarding the security of the United States as

well as concern with foreign news regarding acts of terrorists.

The Criminal Division has general responsibility for those matters
which are of federal interest. Matters involving terrorists

and the national security of the United States are within the pur-
view of the Internal Security Division. United States Attorneys
should be alert for indications of militant political motivation
international in scope with subversive overtones in reported viola-
tions and insure that the presence of any such features or other
factors, which may highlight the federal interest as well as

affect the prosecutive merit of a possible violation, are reflected
in the FBI's report. :

Procedures

Upon receipt of information indicating a violation or poten-
tial violation of the Act, the FBI, after notifying the Department
of State and consulting with the appropriate United States Attor-
ney, will initiate such investigation as is deemed necessary if it
is determined that Federal presence is warranted. The State De-
partment Operations Center (FTS 202-632-1512) can quickly locate
and have the appropriate State Department officials contact the
United States Attorney in cases wherein the United States Attorney

is uncertain as to whether the incident will adversely affect the
fqrelgn relations of the United States.



305

The determination made and action initiated, if any, will _
be reported by the FBI to the Criminal Division, Internal Security
Division, United States Attorney concerned, U.S. Secret Service,
and Department of State without delay. The Bureau will bring to
the attention of the Criminal Division for conclusion any unre-
solved differences of opinion among the Bureau, Secret Service,
Department of State, and United States Attorney concerning action
or lack thereof by any of them. If a United States Attorney's
office receives a complaint of violation of the Act, the com-
plainant should be referred to the FBI field office concerned,
with advice that, as indicated in the Department of State communi-
cation, most conduct in possible violation of the Act is more’
appropriate for disposition under local law, but the FBI will
report the complaint to the appropriate United States authorities
for consideration of possible Federal disposition.

United States Attorneys outside the District of Columbia are
most often going to be asked for opinions concerning activity
that may fall within the prohibitions of subsection 112(c) re-
garding parading, picketing, etc. For example, an FBI agent
might contact the United States Attorney and tell him that a group
of people carrying banners indicating their disapproval of the
policies of County X is picketing the consulate of County X, and
the line of march is within 100 feet of the entrance to the con-
sulate. The picketing is not obstructing passageway into or from
the consulate. The FBI agent would then ask the United States
Attorney what action to take. The United States Attorney should
first determine if the activity possibly violates the Federal
statute, keeping in mind that the prohibited activity (within
100 feet) must be '"for the purpose of" intimidating, coercing,
threatening any foreign official or obstructing him in the per-
formance of his duties (not subsection 112(b)). Our experience
indicates that mest groups are careful to follow the requirements
and instructions of local police officers and that, when FBI
agents have explained the Act to them, the demonstrators have at-
tempted to comply with its provisions. If the activity is clearly
objectionable (obstructing the entranceway to the building, using
public address systems), the United States Attorney may wish to
ask the FBI to conduct an investigation in addition to the normal
procedure of maintaining contact with local officials and keeping
informed. The availability and willingness to act of local law
enforcement officials, who have the resources and the traditional
responsibility to protect people and property, are prime factors
to weigh when considering Federal involvement. Another factor to
consider 'is the potential adverse effect upon the conduct of our
foreign relations which the activity might have. In making this
determination United States Attorneys may wish to contact the U.S.
Department of State to discuss the potential impact upon our
foreign relations. The State Department Operations Center (FTS
202-632-1512) can speedily locate the proper officials in the
State Department who can give such 'advice. The obstruction of
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ingress and egress to and from public buildings and/or the use of
public address systems or other sound amplification systems
usually violates one or more local statutes or ordinances. Nor-
mally we would expect state and local law enforcement officials
to enforce such local laws and that Federal officials will act
after the activity has terminated or in those isolated instances
wherein local officials fail to carry out their responsibilities
or cannot because of limited statutory authority, or wherein
Federal action is deemed necessary.

United States Attorneys should address general inquiries
concerning the Act and operational policies thereunder to the
Criminal Division. General Crimes Section attorneys familiar
with the policies and provisions of the Act may be telephonically
contacted on extension 2346.
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TO ALL LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICfALS:

RE: ACT FOR THE PROTECTION OF FOREIGN
OFFICIALS AND OFFICIAL GUESTS OF THE
UNITED STATES

B STV L

On October 24, 1972, President Nixon signed the above Act
into law.

The Act provides for concurrent jurisdiction the Federal
Government in the investigation of certain acts committed against
foreign officials and official guests, and for the protection of
such individuals. .

AR B U G B S e e

At the beginning of the Act, Congress recognizes, and reaf-
firms, that '". . . the police power to investigate, prosecute,
and punish common crimes such as murder, kidnaping, and assault

(of all individuals whether domestic or foreign) should
remain with the States'; but also notes that, at times, commis-
sion of these common crimes against foreign officials or official
guests may adversely affect or interfere with the foreign affairs
of the United States.
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‘ { Consequently, when common crimes, including those specifical-
ly enumerated in the Act, are committed against foreign officials

or official guests, or property occupied by a foreign government

. or international organization, it is the intent of Congress that

% these matters continue to be investigated and prosecuted by local

; authorities, as in the past.

On the other hand, particularly in light of the current
trend towards violence which is directed against diplomats and
officials of a government by that government's opponents for
political reasons, and especially since these violent acts often
occur in countries not directly involved in the dispute, Congress

" feels that the Federal Government must have concurrent jurisdic-
tion in situations where international repercussions may be felt,
or where the incident may have some effect on United States
foreign relations.

Such an incident and subsequent investigation will require
close coordination at the highest levels of the Federal Government.
The FBI has been assigned jurisdiction for the enforcement of this
Act in cases in which the Federal Government has an interest.

The Act provides for concurrent Federal jurisdiction when the
following prohibited acts are committed: 1) murder; 2) conspiracy
to murder; 3) manslaughter; or 4) kidnaping of a foreign official

' i or official guest. (Federal jurisdiction attaches immediately in
the kidnapping of a foreign official or official guest. The
victim need not be transported in interstate or foreign commerce.)
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The Act also prohibits anyone from 1) assaulting; 2) strik-
ing; 3) wounding; 4) imprisoning; or 5) offering violence to a
foreign official or official guest and from 1) intimidating;
2) coercing; 3) threatening; or 4) harassing a foreign official
or official guest; and from obstructing a foreign official in the
performance of his duties.

Outside the District of Columbia, the Act also prohibits any-
one from, within 100 feet of a foreign or international establish-
ment or the residence of a foreign officia, 1) parading; 2) pic-
keting; 3) displaving any flag, banner, sign, placard, or device;
4) uttering any word, phrase, sound, or noise; or 5) congregating
with two or more other persons with the intent to perform such
acts, for the purpose of 1) intimidating; 2) coercing; 3) threaten-
ing; or 4) harassing any foreign official of obstructing a foreign
official in the performance -of his duties. (These prohibitions
shall not be construed or applied to abridge the exercise of First
Amendment rights.)

The Act further prohibits anyone from 1) injuring; 2) damag-
ing; 3) destroving; or 4) attempting to injure, damage, or destroy
any real or personal property belong to, utilized by, or occupied
by a foreign government, international organization, foreign
official, or official guest.

Definitions, for the purposes of the Act:
Foreign official:

'""1) a Chief of State or the political equivalent, President,
Vice President, Prime Minister, Ambassador, Foreign Minister, or
other officer of cabinet rank or above of a foreign government
or the chief executive officer of an international organization,
or any person whc has previously served in such capacity, and
any member of his family, while in the United States: and

'""2) any person of a foreign nationality who is duly notified
to the United States as an officer or employee of a foreign
government or international organization, (i.e., the United
States has been officially informed of his position) and who is 1in
the United States on official business, and any member of his
family whose presence in the United States is in connection with
the presence of such officer or employee."

Foreign government: "The government of a foreign country,
irrespective of recognition by the United States."

International organization: "a public international organiza-
tion designated as such pursuant to section 1 of the International
Organizations Immunities Act (22 U.S.C. 288)."
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Family: "(a) a spouse, parent, brother or sister, child,
or person to whom the foreign official stands in loco parentis,
or (b) any other person living in his household and related to
the foreign official by blood or marriage.

Official guest: 'a citizen or national of a foreign country
present in the United States as an official guest of the govern-
ment of the United States pursuant to designation as such by the
Secretary of State."

The definitions are quite broad, and are not limited to
individuals with diplomatic status.

The United States Department of State is informing govern-
ments and organizations affected by this Act of the contents of
the Act, and the manner of its enforcement, specifically the in-
tention of the Federal Government not to supplant local authority
in routine criminal cases having no international political
ramifications. A copy of the State Department's diplomatic note
is attached for your information.

You are requested to bring to the attention of your nearest
FBI office any information concerning possible violations of the
Act and intelligence information relating to threatened viola-
tions, since such incidents may have implications affecting United
States foreign policy considerations. If it is determined the
violation does not affect the foreign affairs of the United
States, no Federal prosecution will result.

Your continued support in affording protection to foreign
officials and official guests in cooperation with the United
States Secret Service is vital since the Act does not enlarge
Federal resources for that purpose.

Hopefully, there will be few, if any, such incidents, and
these, most likely, will occur in our larger cities where foreign
governments and organizations have representatives assigned. How-
ever, such an incident may occur while an official is in travel
status or on vacation; consequently, I am attempting to bring
this matter to the attention of all local United States law en-
forcement officials.

Sincerely yours,

L. Patrick Gray, III
Acting Director
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The Secretary of State presents his compliments to Their
Excellencies and Messieurs the Chiefs of Mission and has the
honor to inform them of significant developments concerning the
recent establishment of Federal criminal jurisdiction over cer-
tain offenses against foreign officials and designated other
foreign nationals while in the United States.

On October 24, 1972, President Nixon signed into law a new
Act passed by the Congress of the United States, the "Act for
the Protection of Foreign Officials and Official Guests of the
United States,'" Public Law 92-539. Enactment of this legisla-
tion is a concrete step in the efforts of the United States
Government to enhance the safety and well-being of diplomats and
other officials in this country. "

The provisions of the Act complement existing municipal law
in the United States by making it a Federal offense to murder,
kidnap, assault, or harass foreign officials or official guests
of the United States. The Act also prohibits, under certain con-
ditions, demonstrations within one hundred feet of buildings be-
longing to or used by foreign officials or international organi-
zations (except in the District of Columbia, where current law
prohibits demonstrations within five hundred feet of property
used by a foreign government for official purposes). In addi-
tion, there is a provision outlawing the intentional destruction
of property belonging to or used by foreign governments, inter-
national organizations, foreign officials, and official guests.

~ The Department of State wishes to point out that state and
municipal law enforcement and judicial authorities will continue
to bear principal responsibility for the protection of foreign
government and international organization premises, property,
and personnel.

Enclosed is a copy of a communication from the Acting Direc-
tor of the Federal Bureau of Investigation to the heads of all
law enforcement agencies in the United States which reflects the
need for local agencies to continue performance of their tradi-
tional role in handling common crimes of violence and further
requests, notwithstanding, that the Federal Government be in-
formed of violations of the Act coming to the attention of local
agencies so the United States can swiftly and effectively respond
in those occasional situations where substantial reasons appear
for Federal rather than local disposition.

Under the Act, two categories of persons are covered by the
term "foreign official.” In the first category are heads of
state (Chief of State or political equivalent, President, Vice
President, Prime Minister), foreign ministers, ambassadors, and
other officers of cabinet rank or above of a foreign government,
chief executive officers of international organizations, persons
who have previously served in any such capacitizs, and members
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of their families, while in the United States. Second, any person
of a foreign nationality who is duly notified to the United States
as an officer or employee of a foreign government or international
organization, and who is in the United States on official business,
is considered a '"foreign official." So also is any member of the
family of such a "foreign official" whose presence in the United
States is in connection with the presence of such officer or em-
ployee. To be covered within the second category of persons, the
person in question must be notified to the United States.

For persons normally accredited to the United States in diplo-
matic or consular capacities, and also for persons normally accre-
dited to the United Nations and other international organizations
and in turn notified to the Department of State, the procedure for
placing a person in the statutory category of being "duly notified
to the United States' is the current procedure for accreditation,
with notification in turn when applicable. Accordingly all persons
presently accredited, and, when applicable, notified in turn, will
constitute the roster of persons who are '"duly notified to the
United States.'" The Office of the Chief of Protocol of the Depart-
ment of State will maintain the roster of such persons in its of-
ficial files.

Under existing United States policy, previously communicated
by circular diplomatic note, all officers and employees of a
foreign government on duty in the United States are notified to
the Department of State. Embassies which have not yet notified
the State Department of any such officers or employees and wish
to obtain for them the status of being '"duly notified to the
United States'" for the purposes of the Act should submit the
appropriate notification to the Office of the Chief of Protocol.
It should be understood that the status of "being duly notified
to the United States' in this context serves only to afford a
basis for prosecution for violations of the Act and has no impact
or effect on existing arrangements, policies, and procedures as to
personal protection and security.

It should be noted that the Act also applies to official
guests designated by the Secretary of State. The Office of the
Chief of Protocol of the Department of State will serve as the
office of record for such designations.
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